

BEST PRACTICES GUIDE

# Nimble Storage Best Practices for CommVault Simpana\*

Efficient Nimble Storage snapshots managed by CommVault Simpana IntelliSnap - Enables aggressive data protection for critical applications



### **Table of Contents**

INTRODUCTION	
TARGET AUDIENCE	
STRATEGY & OBJECTIVES	4
RECOVERY POINTS & RECOVERY TIME	
Nimble Storage Snapshots	
TERMINOLOGY	5
RECOMMENDATIONS	7
NAMING CONVENTIONS	
SNAPSHOTS, FREQUENCY, & RETENTION	
CONFIGURATION & DEPLOYMENT	
Simpana Array Management	
Nimble Storage Volume Collections	
Protection Templates	
Replication Partners	11
Simpana Storage Policies	11
Backup Copy	
Proxy for Backup Copy	
Snap Copy – Data Aging & Retention	
Simpana Client & Subclient Properties	17
RECOVERY	
LISTING SNAPSHOTS	
LOCAL RECOVERY WITH SIMPANA	
Non-Application Aware Recovery	
USING REPLICATED SNAPSHOTS FOR RECOVERY	
APPENDIX A: NIMBLE STORAGE AS A SIMPANA DISK LIBRARY	27
NIMBLE STORAGE PERFORMANCE POLICY	
NIMBLE DI URAGE VOLUME Simpania Media Agenit	
SIMPANA DISK LIBRARY	

## Introduction

Nimble Storage snapshots are based on highly efficient *redirect-on-write* technology and take advantage of universal compression, ensuring that snapshots consume minimal storage space. The ability to take and store months of frequent application consistent snapshots drastically reduces the overhead incurred with traditional backup data movement as data is no longer read from storage by an application server, transported over a network to a backup server, and subsequently written to backup storage. The net result is faster backup, recovery, and disaster recovery preparedness at a reduced total cost of ownership when compared to legacy solutions.

Nimble OS version 1.2 and CommVault Simpana 9.0 R2 SP6 introduced integrated support for Nimble Storage snapshots with IntelliSnap. Nimble Storage OS versions 2.1 and higher with Simpana 10 SP7A and higher enhances integration, enabling users to fully leverage advanced application awareness and automation available in the combined solution. CommVault triggers Nimble Storage snapshots under direct control of Simpana schedule policies. Replication to a downstream Nimble Storage partner array can be automated within a Nimble volume collection schedule such that it occurs at the completion of a successful IntelliSnap backup. Downstream replica snapshots can be restored manually, or can be cloned into volumes and used to perform disaster recovery testing without impacting production workload. "Backup Copy" functionality, the policy based ability to copy IntelliSnap created snapshots from a local Nimble Storage array to external storage media, is also performed under the direct control of Simpana.

The integrated solution provides significant benefits that deliver tangible business value:

- Use Simpana schedule policies to automatically protect supported applications with IntelliSnap and the Nimble Storage snap engine.
- IntelliSnap created Nimble Storage snapshots on the local Nimble Storage array are indexed and cataloged by Simpana enabling search and browse for rapid, targeted recovery.
- Intellisnap created Nimble Storage snapshots can be replicated to a downstream Nimble array under the control of Nimble volume collection schedules. These can then be used to either manually recover or clone snapshot volumes.
- Selectively copy IntelliSnap created Nimble Storage snapshots from a local Nimble Storage array to external media such as tape with Simpana backup copy jobs.
- Browse and recover from IntelliSnap created Nimble Storage snapshots on the local Nimble Storage array via the familiar Simpana user interface.
- Monitor and track backup, restore, and copy job progress using the Simpana Comcell console job controller.
- Use Simpana to generate comprehensive reports.

### **Target Audience**

Simpana administrators, storage architects, and Nimble Storage administrators are encouraged to read this document. The recommendations set out to assist in deploying a supported, successful, and reliable solution.

# **Strategy & Objectives**

The goals of a data protection solution should be focused on data recovery requirements. Service levels for data recovery may include a variety of factors:

- **RPO (Recovery Point Objective):** Generally accepted as the amount of data that can be lost when the most recent backup is recovered.
- **RTO (Recovery Time Objective):** Generally accepted as the amount of time between the instant where an outage occurs to the point where production workload is resumed. Business critical data is likely to have a short recovery time objective, whereas less critical data may have a longer recovery time objective.
- DR (Disaster Recovery): A number of scenarios that may include the ability to recover data at a remote location.

It is the responsibility of the user to understand the RPO, RTO, and DR requirements for a given deployment. Subsequent content in this document serves to assist in achieving those objectives.

### **Recovery Points & Recovery Time**

Simpana IntelliSnap backups of a Nimble Storage volume collection represent points in time to which the volume collection can be recovered. The frequency at which IntelliSnap subclient backups are executed will define the maximum duration between backups. The maximum elapsed time between backups is in effect the maximum recovery point for the subclient. Planning the frequency of IntelliSnap backups so that they align with the recovery point objectives of a given subclient is recommended.

#### **Nimble Storage Snapshots**

Simpana IntelliSnap subclient backups utilize the Nimble Storage snap engine to create snapshots local to the Nimble Storage array on which the target volume collection resides. Nimble Storage snapshots can be used to effectively reduce recovery point objectives, reduce the storage load that occurs with traditional disk or tape backups, while also reducing the recovery time objective.



Figure 1 – Traditional Backup and Recovery

Depicted in figure 1 is a traditional MS SQL Server backup strategy. A long full backup window followed by regular transaction log backups impacts both the storage subsystem and database server by placing a load on them while backups are being performed. Recovery time can be substantial as both the most recent full backup and subsequent transaction log backups need to be recovered from traditional backup media, disk or tape.



Figure 2 – Nimble Storage Snapshots and Recovery

Depicted in figure 2 are Nimble Storage snapshots managed by CommVault Simpana IntelliSnap taken at 15 minute intervals. Impact to the Nimble Storage array and database server is minimal. Recovery time is drastically reduced, and the entire process is managed using the familiar Simpana user interface.

# Terminology

A brief introduction to terminology that may be new or unfamiliar is covered in this section.

• **Simpana Array Management:** The storage array management interface within Simpana that facilitates adding a Nimble Storage array to the configuration. A collection of configuration parameters including the array name, control host, and user credentials as well as a description are entered to allow Simpana to control Nimble Storage snapshots with IntelliSnap.

- Nimble Storage Volume Collection: A group of related volumes that share data protection characteristics such as snapshot and replication schedules. An example volume collection might consist of one Nimble Storage volume used for a Microsoft Exchange database and another volume used for the Exchange logs that must be snapshotted simultaneously to ensure data integrity. Backup scheduling is configured within the volume collection such that it is triggered by CommVault Simpana. Optionally, a replication partner can also be configured enabling the volume collection schedule to replicate snapshots to a downstream Nimble array.
- Nimble Storage Protection Template: A set of user defined schedules and retention limits that
  can be selected for use when creating a volume collection or a standalone volume. An example
  protection template might be created for use with Simpana, enabling CommVault to trigger backup
  jobs. In this use case Simpana also manages retention and automates data aging. Additionally, a
  replication partner can be specified in the template.
- Nimble Storage Replication Partner: A pair of Nimble Storage arrays that communicate with each other over a network to enable the recovery of volumes in the unlikely event of a failure. Replication partners are configured to replicate snapshots. Volume collections are easily configured to enable automated replication.
- Nimble Storage Initiator Group: A method to limit volume access to only specific initiators is to use an initiator group. Depending on how Simpana is configured, it may be practical to add the initiator of a proxy for backup copy jobs to an existing initiator group.
- Nimble Storage Performance Policy: A collection of performance parameters associated with one
  or more Nimble Storage volumes. Standard policies are available for most data types (Oracle, MS
  SQL, VMware, etc.) Custom performance policies can also be created for special use cases. For
  example, the case where a Nimble Storage volume is being configured for use as a Simpana disk
  library.
- Nimble Connection Manager (NCM): Part of the integration between Nimble Storage arrays and Windows or VMware deployments is handled by NCM. NCM manages connections between Windows or ESXi hosts and Nimble Storage arrays. NCM is usually deployed by the storage administrative team and is mentioned for awareness only.
- Nimble Windows Toolkit (NWT): Provided in a single installation package, NWT includes a number of valuable tools enabling setup management, connection management, and connection services for a Windows environment. NWT should be installed on Simpana Windows Media Agents configured as proxy hosts that perform indexing and backup copy jobs.
- **Nimble Storage InfoSight:** The Nimble Storage InfoSight portal provides comprehensive information about Nimble Storage arrays, and also serves as an access point for Nimble Storage code and documentation downloads.

# Recommendations

In all cases the appropriate compatibility matrices should be referenced before architecting a solution. Validate that supported versions of Nimble Storage Operating System, and CommVault Simpana are being used. Also check all related applications to be sure they are supported with the version of Simpana being used.

Nimble Storage compatibility matrices are located on the InfoSight portal. After logging into the
portal click "Downloads" and then select the appropriate Nimble OS version. In the list of available
documents select the item named, "Support Matrix". The "Backup Software Coexistence" section of
the document contains information about Simpana and Simpana service pack versions that may be
required. Also select the item named, "Release Notes". The release notes document may contain
additional information specific to Simpana.

https://infosight.nimblestorage.com/

CommVault Simpana documentation is located at:

http://documentation.CommVault.com/CommVault/v10/article

### **Naming Conventions**

What begins as a proof of concept or series of simple tests may turn into a production deployment. Renaming components of a deployed solution may introduce extra work, complexity, and calls to technical support.

When possible, use nomenclature that has already been standardized within the environment. Array and volume names are typically defined prior to data protection solution deployment. Nimble Storage entities that may require creation and naming are volume collections and protection templates. These items should be named such that they conform to existing conventions while being descriptive with regard to purpose and function. Similarly, Simpana entities such as storage policy copies and disk libraries added as part of a Nimble Storage deployment should also be named such that they conform to existing standards while being descriptive with regard to purpose and function.

### Snapshots, Frequency, & Retention

 The shortest recommended duration between Simpana IntelliSnap snapshots on a single subclient is 15 minutes: Although Nimble Storage arrays are capable of taking snapshots repetitively at intervals as short as one minute, the recommended minimum interval or frequency is fifteen minutes. The reasoning behind this recommendation is tied to application synchronization, where for instance the Microsoft VSS framework surrounding the Nimble Storage array takes time to freeze and resume input/output, and also the time it takes Simpana to catalog and index backup activity.

- Simultaneous IntelliSnap backups on many subclients should be avoided: Instead of scheduling a large number of subclients to initiate backups simultaneously, consider staggering the start time of each subclient by a few minutes when possible. Consider different backup schedules for a collection of ten clients that initiate backups at one through ten minutes after the hour, for example.
- Co-locating multiple databases on the same Nimble Storage volume collection: Multiple
  databases residing on the same Nimble Storage volume collection should have the same retention
  requirements and be protected by the same Simpana subclient. IntelliSnap snapshots occur at the
  volume level, and are also aged such that the entire snapshot is deleted at expiration time.
- Retention planning considerations: Consider the service level agreement (SLA) for data set
  recovery and implement a Simpana retention strategy that aligns with it. Correlate SLA
  requirements into retention requirements for hourly, daily, weekly, monthly, and quarterly backups
  (for example). Plan to deploy backup copy jobs for datasets with long term retention needs that may
  be impractical to retain as snapshots, such as those with a 7 year retention requirement. Note that
  backup copy jobs can be executed using IntelliSnap created snapshots on a local Nimble Storage
  array.
- **Snapshot Replication:** Nimble Storage snapshots managed by Simpana IntelliSnap backups can be replicated to a second Nimble Storage array. The prerequisites for snapshot replication include the use of a volume collection, configuring a replication partner, and the use of a protection template that specifies the replication destination. Snapshots are replicated under the control of Nimble's volume collection schedules.

### **Configuration & Deployment**

#### Simpana Array Management

Configure the Nimble Storage array within Simpana using the Array Management tool. Enter the Nimble Storage management IP address for the array name and control host parameters. Be sure to select Nimble Storage as the snap vendor. The description parameter is a user defined label, and typically contains the hostname of the Nimble Storage array. If not already known, the user name and password parameters should be obtained from the storage administration team. The user specified must have a role level of "Power User" or "Administrator" assigned on the Nimble array. The Nimble Storage user name and password are required when configuring the array for integration with Simpana.

Name	Control Host	User Name	Snap Vendor Name	Туре	Descr
255 255 0.0	255 255 0.0	admin	Nimble Storage	Array	

Figure 3 – Simpana Array Management

Depicted in figure 3 is the Simpana Array Management tool. A single Nimble Storage array has been added to the configuration.

#### **Nimble Storage Volume Collections**

A volume collection should consist of related Nimble Storage volumes such as a Microsoft SQL database and log volume. These volumes share common backup and replication data protection characteristics. Limit the number of volumes associated within a volume collection to only related volumes. For example, related volumes are database and log volumes for a single database server. Single volumes such as a NTFS volume, should be protected separately as a standalone volume.

**Volume Collections** 

	New Volume Collection			Volume Collections: 6	Total Usage: <b>1.83 TB</b>
	Volume Collection	Synchronization	Last Snapshot	Replication Partner	Last Replication
6	dpl-ex2010-db	None	-	None	
6	dpl-EX2010-DB7	Microsoft VSS	05/17 12:00 AM	None	
6	dpl-Exchange-collection	None	-	None	
6	dpl-sql-collection	Microsoft VSS	-	mktg-cs460gx2	06/02 01:42 PM
6	dpl-sql2008r2	None	-	None	
8	dpl-TMSandbox-TestDataStore0000	VMware vCenter	-	None	

#### Figure 4 – Nimble Storage Volume Collections

Within a volume collection, application synchronization should be disabled as application consistency in conjunction with Nimble Storage snapshots is orchestrated by Simpana.

Introduction	Synchronization	Schedules	Volumes	
SYNCHRO	NIZATION			
Volume running applicat C No C Mic	collection snapsh on the volume th ion I/O at the tim ne rosoft® VSS ware® vCenter	iots can be syr irough Microso ie of snapshot	nchronized wit ft Volume Shi creation, ensu	h application or hypervisor (VM) components Idow Services (VSS) or VMware APIs. This quiesces Iring application-consistent backups and replicas.

Figure 5 – Volume Collection Synchronization

The volume collection schedule section includes an advanced feature set specific to integration with Simpana. Selecting the advanced menu item, "Snapshot triggered by CommVault", enables Simpana to

control the scheduling of IntelliSnap backups associated with the volume collection. Additionally, when a replication partner is selected, snapshots will also be automatically replicated.

Introduction	Synchronization	Schedules	Volumes		
Schedules the volum Replicatio disaster m	: specify how freq es assigned to thi n allows you to ef ecovery.	uently snapsh s volume colle ficiently copy :	ots should be ta oction. snapshots to an	oken and how i	many snapshots should be retained for array (the "replication partner") for
<ul> <li>✓ Advand</li> <li>✓ S</li> </ul>	ced inapshot triggered by	Commvault®	0		
"SIMPAN	ASNAPANDREPLICA	TE1" PROTECTI	ON SCHEDULE		
Schedu	ıle Name	Simp	anaSnapAndRepl	icate1	Delete
Schedu	ıle Trigger	0	Native Commvault®		
Replica	ite to	mktg	-loaner1	~	
Numbe on the	r of snapshots to replica	retain 14			

Figure 6 – Volume Collection Schedule

Depicted in figure 6 is the volume collection "Schedules" tab. When selected, the advanced menu item "Snapshot triggered by CommVault" enables Simpana to control the scheduling of IntelliSnap backups associated with the volume collection. Additionally, when a replication partner is selected, snapshots will be automatically replicated.

It is important to understand that while snapshot retention on the local Nimble Storage array is controlled by Simpana, replicated snapshot retention is controlled based on the value entered into the "Number of snapshots to retain on the replica" field. Replicated snapshots that exceed this value cause the oldest replica snapshot to be deleted.

Equally important to understand is that manually created snapshots, snapshots not created by Simpana, can potentially create issues if they are not understood. The first issue is that without Simpana, a manually invoked snapshot has no application synchronization. The synchronization properties of the volume collection have been purposefully configured to a use a value equal to "none" because the intended use case is in conjunction with Simpana. The second potential issue is that manually invoked snapshots that are replicated may displace application consistent snapshots created by Simpana.

#### **Protection Templates**

Protection templates can be used to simplify the creation of volume collections with standard configuration parameters. Volume collection synchronization and schedule parameters can be entered once into a protection template and saved for future use with new volume collections. When creating multiple volume collections, it may make sense to re-use common templates for synchronization and

scheduling. Some deployments may require the use of multiple templates. For instance, the following templates could be created for standardized use cases within a given deployment:

- Protection Template 1 enables snapshots triggered by CommVault and replication to a partner retaining some number of snapshots.
- Protection Temple 2 enables snapshots triggered by CommVault without replication.

#### **Replication Partners**

Partners are easily configured and provide an opportunity to retain offsite copies of Simpana IntelliSnap backups. Replication partners should be tested when configured to validate connectivity.

Replication Partners						
New Replication Partner			Ove Lag	erall Replication	0 minutes	Overall Bandwidth Limit:Unlimited
Replication		Address	Status	, in the second s	Replication Lag	Replicated Volume Collections
mktg-cs460gx2	TEST	mktg-cs460gx2.sedemo.lab	ок	-		1

#### Figure 7 – Replication Partners

Shown in figure 7 is a single replication partner. Note that partner connectivity can be tested with the "TEST" button. Also note that current status, replication lag, and the number of replicated volume collections is displayed.

Note that the replication network is selectable between management or controller IP addresses and data network IP addresses. In either use case the selected network needs to be routable between Nimble Storage arrays.



Figure 8 – Replication Network

#### **Simpana Storage Policies**

Storage policies define the storage resources used for backups and indices. They also define data aging rules and retention rules for backups. When initially created, a storage policy can accommodate a single instance of a given backup. Duplicate copies can be configured such that the storage policy can manage the creation, aging, and retention of multiple copies of a given backup.

Storage policies intended for use with IntelliSnap should be configured to consist of at least two backup copies. The copy that gets created by default when initially configuring a new storage policy will typically

use a disk or tape library selected by the user as a location to store indices. A new snapshot copy should be added to the storage policy to accommodate IntelliSnap backups.

Within the context of Simpana, each copy of a backup has a precedence value and a copy name. Precedence refers to the order in which the copy was created. Copy name is a user assigned string that can be used to identify (for instance) the location of the copy. An example of a storage policy intended for use with IntelliSnap might consist of copy precendence 1 with a copy name equal to "NimbleSnapshotCopy" and copy precedence 2 with a copy name equal to "TapeCopy".

erties: StoragePolicy1	X
ce Associated Subclients Snapshot	Security Advanced
Copy Name	≥ 🔕
eSnapshotCopy	
or Disk Library	
OK	Cancel Help
	erties: StoragePolicy1 ICE Associated Subclients Snapshot Copy Name eSnapshotCopy or Disk Library OK

Figure 9 – Storage Policy Copy Precedence

Shown in figure 9 is the copy precedence for a storage policy. The copy names have been modified to best reflect the storage location. Copy precedence 1 represents snapshots residing on a Nimble Storage array. Copy precedence 2 represents a storage location for duplicate copies of Nimble Storage array snapshots on a tape or disk library.

#### **Backup Copy**

Creating copies or duplicates of snapshot based backups is popular for a number of reasons:

- Reason 1, in the unlikely event of an outage, application data and snapshot based backup data are not available. Having an external copy of the backup data increases an organizations ability to recover from this type of interruption.
- Reason 2, some storage vendors utilize inefficient snapshot technology that consumes substantial storage space limiting the time that snapshots can be retained. Having an external copy of backup data assists in managing storage space utilization, allowing snapshots to be deleted sooner. Nimble Storage snapshots are lightweight enough to efficiently last for months.
- Reason 3, some storage vendors cannot efficiently replicate snapshots to serve as an offsite backup copy. Having an external copy of backup data facilitates a "putting tapes on trucks" disaster recovery methodology. Nimble Storage replication leverages highly-efficient data compression technology and only transmits block-level changes which greatly reduces bandwidth requirements when compared to other storage vendors.

Backup copies sourced from IntelliSnap created snapshots on the local Nimble Storage array are expensive in terms of reading data from the storage array, moving the data through a media agent, and writing the data out to external storage media. Storage processing power, I/O operations, SAN or network traffic, and the cost of external storage media contribute to the overall expense.

This expense is can be mitigated with storage policy job selection rules. Consider creating fewer duplicate copies of backups. Consider retaining a higher number of copy precedence 1 backups (Nimble Storage array snapshots), replicating more copy precedence 1 backups, while creating a drastically reduced quantity of copy precedence 2 (external backup media) backups.

Backup copy should be enabled if the creation of duplicate backup copies is required. Storage policy job selection rules provide the ability to selectively choose which snapshots are copied to external media.

Storage Policy Properties: ExchangeStoragePolicy	×
General   Copy Precedence   Associated Subclients   Snapshot   Security   Advanced	
Snapshot Management Rules	
🕝 Enable Backup Copy	
C Disable Backup Copy	
NA5 Filesystem Snap Catalog Options:	
Catalog snapshots	
Snapshots Created On and After Fri 05/09/2014	
Defer Backup Copy for 0 day(s)	
Job Selection Rules	
C All Backups	
Choose the Backup Selection Rule: Advanced	

Figure 10 – Storage Policy Snapshot Management Rules

Shown in figure 10 are the snapshot management rules for a storage policy. Backup copy should be enabled if the creation of duplicate backup copies is required. Advanced job selection rules provide the ability to select which backups are copied at a granular level.

The backup selection rule dialog, invoked by clicking the "Advanced" button within storage policy snapshot management rules, facilitates selecting a subset of backups for duplication.



Figure 11 – Selecting Backups for Duplication

Shown in figure 11 are backup selection rules for storage policy backup copies. The example selection rule reduces the quantity of backup copies created by only selecting weekly full backups for copy creation. Sunday has been selected as the day on which the week starts, and for each period the first full backup will be used to source creation of a duplicate copy.

Similar to the way that multiple storage policies may be required to enact different retention periods for different data types, different storage policies can also be created to impose unique backup copy rules for different data types.

#### **Proxy for Backup Copy**

Backup copy operations read the contents of a volume collection snapshot, transfer the data through a media agent, and write the data out to backup media. In cases where the media agent managing the IntelliSnap snapshot is not the media agent hosting the backup media (tape, disk, etc.) a network hop between media agents becomes part of the backup copy data path. This extra hop can be eliminated by using a proxy for backup copy operations. Also eliminated is application host resource usage as the backup copy operation is effectively performed off-host.



Figure 12 – Proxy for Backup Copy

Shown in figure 12 is a representation of the data path used for a proxy backup copy operation. The use of a proxy eliminates the network hop between application server and external backup media while also eliminating resource usage on the application server.

Subclient Properties of SQL	DB
General Content B Activity Control Encryptio	ackup Rules   Pre/Post Process   Storage Device   n IntelliSnap Operations   Security   SQL Settings
IntelliSnap (Applicable on	ly to Full and Differential jobs)
Available Shap Engines	Manage Array
Use Proxy	
Use Separate Proxy	/ for Backup Copy
	acs.sedemo.lab
Use source if proxy is	unreachable

Figure 13 – Proxy for Backup Copy

Shown in figure 13 is the IntellSnap Operations tab of a subclient. A proxy has been selected for backup copy operations.

In addition to configuring Simpana for backup copy proxy usage, the Nimble Storage volume collection member volumes require modification to their access privileges. The Simpana proxy host needs to have unrestricted snapshot access rights on all volumes within the volume collection.

eneral Properties Volume Siz	e Protection Access			
Allow multiple initiator access	Enable ONLY on volum multiple initiators (suc Non-coordinated acces	es that are <b>optimized</b> h as VMware VMFS or M is by multiple initiators r	<b>for sim</b> icrosoft may lead	<b>ultaneous</b> access by Cluster Server). d to data corruption.
Apply to	iSCSI Initiator Group	CHAP Username		Add
Volume & Snapshots	dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.l	Unrestricted Access	×	

Figure 14 – Access Privileges for Proxy Host

Shown in figure 14 are access permissions for a member of a volume collection. A Simpana backup copy proxy media agent needs to be granted unrestricted access to snapshots on all member volumes within a volume collection. Note that the "Allow multiple initiator access" checkbox also needs to be checked.

### Snap Copy – Data Aging & Retention

Snap copy data aging should be enabled as it allows data from the copy to be deleted when the retention rules have been met. The Simpana data aging process deletes old snapshots that no longer need to be retained.

Retention criteria can be specified in a number of ways to accommodate virtually any retention strategy. As discussed previously in the Backup Copy section of this document, maximizing the use of snapshots and minimizing the use of copies is highly desirable.

Retention Data Paths Data Path Configuration Selective Copy Associations Advanced Deduplication Provisioning	Snap Copy Properties: NimbleSnapshotCopy	Þ
✓ Enable Data Aging            • Spool Copy (No Retention)             • Retain Snaps by Number of Jobs             ∎ Basic Retention Rule for All Backups             • Infinite             • Retain for             7 ± Days             Extended Retention Rules for Full Backups             ▼ For             ▼ For             □ Days             ▼ For             □ Days             □ Thinite/             □ Days             ▼ For             □ Days             □ Days             □ Forinite/             □ Days             □ Rules for previous tier             For The Daily Full Rule and Hourly Full rule the Day starts at:             □ The Daily Full Rule the Month starts on:             □ Privals keep the:             □ First full backup of time period             □ First full backup of time period	General Retention Data Paths Data Path Configuration Selective Copy Associations Advanced Deduc	lication Provisioning
<ul> <li>Spool Copy (No Retention)</li> <li> Retain Snaps by Number of Jobs ■ ■ </li> <li>Basic Retention Rule for All Backups  Infinite </li> <li> Retain for 7 ■ Days 2 ■ Cycles </li> </ul> <li> Extended Retention Rules for Full Backups</li>	🔽 Enable Data Aging	<u>*</u>
<ul> <li>Retain Snaps by Number of Jobs 1 ±</li> <li>Basic Retention Rule for All Backups</li> <li>C Infinite</li> <li>Retain for 7 ± Days 2 ± Cycles</li> <li>Extended Retention Rules for Full Backups</li> <li>For Infinite/ 30 ± Days Keep Weekly Full ▼ Grace 1 ▼ Day(s)</li> <li>For Infinite/ 90 ± Days Keep Monthly Full ▼ Grace 3 ▼ Day(s)</li> <li>For Infinite/ 365 ± Days Keep Quarterly Full ▼ Grace 6 ▼ Day(s)</li> <li>Select the jobs from previous tier</li> <li>For Weekly Full Rule and Hourly Full rule the Day starts at: 12:00 AM</li> <li>For Weekly Full Rule the Week starts on: 1</li> <li>For Weekly Full Rule the Month starts on: 1</li> <li>For all rules keep the:</li> <li>First full backup of time period</li> <li>Last full backup of time period</li> </ul>	C Spool Copy (No Retention)	
Basic Retention Rule for All Backups            C Infinite             C Retain for             T For             Infinite/             J a a Days Keep             Weekly Full             For             Infinite/             J a a Days Keep             Weekly Full             Grace             For             Infinite/             J a Days         Keep             Quarterly Full             Grace             Select the jobs from previous tier             For Weekly Full Rule and Hourly Full rule the Day starts at:             For Weekly Full Rule the Month starts on:             For all rules keep the:             First full backup of time period             First full backup of time period	C Retain Snaps by Number of Jobs	
C Infinite            • Retain for             • Retain for             • Retain for             • Partial State	Basic Retention Rule for All Backups	
•• Retain for         •• T         •• Retain for         •• T         •• Cycles             Extended Retention Rules for Full Backups             ✓ For         •• Infinite/         •• 30        •• Days Keep         Weekly Full         •• Grace         1         •• Day(s)         ✓ For         •• Infinite/         90        •• Days Keep         Monthly Full         •• Grace         3         •• Day(s)         ✓ For         •• Infinite/         90        •• Days Keep         Monthly Full         •• Grace         3         •• Day(s)         ✓ For         •• Infinite/         365        •• Days Keep         Quarterly Full         •• Grace         6         •• Day(s)         ✓ For         •• Infinite/         365        •• Days Keep         Quarterly Full         •• Grace         6         •• Day(s)             ✓ For         •• Infinite/         365        •• Days Keep         Quarterly Full         •• Grace         6         •• Day(s)             ✓ For         •• Infinite/         365        •• Days Keep         Quarterly Full         •• Grace         6         •• Day(s)             ✓ For         •• Infinite/         365        •• Days Keep         Quarterly Full         •• Grace         6         •• Day(s)         •• For         The Daily Full Rule and Hourly Full rule the Day starts at:         12         •• Daam         ••         For Weekly Full Rule the Week starts on:         ••         For Weekly Full Rule the Month starts on:         1         ••         For all rules keep the:              •• First full backup of time period              ••         First full backup of time period              ••	C Infinite	
Extended Retention Rules for Full Backups For Infinite/ 30 x Days Keep Weekly Full Y Grace 1 Y Day(s) For Infinite/ 90 x Days Keep Monthly Full Y Grace 3 Y Day(s) For Infinite/ 365 Days Keep Quarterly Full Y Grace 6 Day(s) Select the jobs from previous tier For The Daily Full Rule and Hourly Full rule the Day starts at: 12:00 AM For Weekly Full Rule the Week starts on: Friday For Monthly Full Rule the Month starts on: 1 For all rules keep the: For all rules keep the: First full backup of time period For Last full backup of time period	Retain for     7      Days     2      Cycles	
▼ For       Infinite/       30 ±       Days Keep       Weekly Full       ▼ Grace       1 ▼ Day(s)         ♥ For       Infinite/       90 ±       Days Keep       Monthly Full       ♥ Grace       3 ▼ Day(s)         ♥ For       Infinite/       365 ±       Days Keep       Quarterly Full       ♥ Grace       6 ▼ Day(s)         ♥ For       Infinite/       365 ±       Days Keep       Quarterly Full       ♥ Grace       6 ▼ Day(s)         ♥ For       Infinite/       365 ±       Days Keep       Quarterly Full       ♥ Grace       6 ▼ Day(s)         ♥ For       Infinite/       365 ±       Days Keep       Quarterly Full       ♥ Grace       6 ▼ Day(s)         ♥ Select the jobs from previous tier       For The Daily Full Rule and Hourly Full rule the Day starts at:       12 ± 00 AM       ±         For Weekly Full Rule the Week starts on:       Friday       ▼       ▼         For Monthly Full Rule the Month starts on:       1       ▼         ♥ For all rules keep the:       ●       ●       ●         ●       First full backup of time period       ●       ●         ●       Last full backup of time period       ▼       ●	Extended Retention Rules for Full Backups	
Image: For for finite/       90 for for for finite/       90 for	For Infinite/ 30 Days Keep Weekly Full T Grace 1 T Day(s)	
▼ For       Infinite/       365       →       Days Keep       Quarterly Full       ▼ Grace       6       ▼ Day(s)         Select the jobs from previous tier         For The Daily Full Rule and Hourly Full rule the Day starts at:       12:00 AM       →         For Weekly Full Rule the Week starts on:       Friday       ▼         For Monthly Full Rule the Month starts on:       1       ▼         For all rules keep the: <ul> <li>© First full backup of time period</li> <li>© Last full backup of time period</li> <li>▼</li> </ul>	For Infinite/ 90 Days Keep Monthly Full Grace 3 Day(s)	
Select the jobs from previous tier For The Daily Full Rule and Hourly Full rule the Day starts at: 12:00 AM For Weekly Full Rule the Week starts on: Friday For Monthly Full Rule the Month starts on: For all rules keep the: First full backup of time period C Last full backup of time period	For Infinite/ 365 Days Keep Quarterly Full T Grace 6 T Day(s)	
For The Daily Full Rule and Hourly Full rule the Day starts at: 12:00 AM	Select the jobs from previous tier	
For Weekly Full Rule the Week starts on:       Friday         For Monthly Full Rule the Month starts on:       I         For all rules keep the:       •         • First full backup of time period       •         • Last full backup of time period       •	For The Daily Full Rule and Hourly Full rule the Day starts at:	
For Monthly Full Rule the Month starts on:       Image: Comparison of the period         Image: Comparison of the period       Image: Comparison of the period         Image: Comparison of the period       Image: Comparison of the period	For Weekly Full Rule the Week starts on: Friday	
For all rules keep the: C First full backup of time period C Last full backup of time period	For Monthly Full Rule the Month starts on:	
First full backup of time period     C Last full backup of time period	For all rules keep the:	
C Last full backup of time period	C First full backup of time period	
	C Last full backup of time period	
OK Cancel Help	OK	Cancel Help

Figure 15 – Snap Copy Retention

Shown in figure 15 is an example Snap Copy Retention strategy. Enabling data aging is recommended. Basic and extended retention rules can be configured to retain snapshots based on business requirements.

#### **Simpana Client & Subclient Properties**

Enabling IntelliSnap at the client level is required in order to configure IntelliSnap parameters at the subclient level. From the client properties dialog window, click the "Advanced" button. Within the advanced client properties dialog window the "Enable IntelliSnap" box needs to be checked.

nervotion	Conte	ent Indexing	Additio	nal Settings	Ded	uplication	Web Server URLs
eneral Gr	oups	Firewall Config	uration	Network Th	rottle	Policies	Job Configuration
1 Gr	oops 1	r norran coring	Grocion	- Hothon M	10000	1 1 010000 1	Sob coningeration
	0400						
ID Death a							
VD Port :	8400						
VD Port :	8400						

Figure 16 – Advanced Client – Enable IntelliSnap

At the subclient level, Intellisnap should be enabled and the "Nimble CS-Series Snap and Replicate" snap engine should be selected. Selecting this snap engine is applicable to the use case where Nimble

Storage array snapshots will be taken on the local array and replicated to a destination array, as well as the use case where snapshots will be taken without replication.

General I Contents   Pre/Post Process ntelliSnap Operations Storage Device Activity Control Encrypt	General I Contents Pre/Post Process IntelliSnap Operations Storage Device Activity Control Encrypt v IntelliSnap Available Snap Engines Nimble CS-Series Snap and Replicate v Manage Array Use Proxy v V Use Separate Proxy for Backup Copy Proxy dpl-simpanacs.sedemo.lab Use source if proxy is unreachable		Trues of M	and a capacity of a capacity o			
▼ IntelliSnap Available Snap Engines Nimble CS-Series Snap and Replicate ▼ Manage Array Use Proxy ▼ Use Separate Proxy for Backup Copy Proxy dpl-simpanacs.sedemo.lab	IntelliSnap Available Snap Engines Nimble CS-Series Snap and Replicate Manage Array Use Proxy Use Proxy Use Separate Proxy for Backup Copy Proxy dpl-simpanacs.sedemo.lab Use source if proxy is unreachable	General ntelliSnap Ope	l rations	Contents   Storage Device	Pre/ Activity C	(Post Proces	ss Encryptic
Proxy dpl-simpanacs.sedemo.lab	Proxy dpl-simpanacs.sedemo.lab	✓ IntelliSnap Available Sn	ap Engines	Nimble CS-Series Sr	hap and Replicate	▼ IV	
	Use source if proxy is unreachable	Use Proxy	eparate Pro	xy for Backup Copy	<b>*</b>	_	

Figure 17 – IntelliSnap Operations

Shown in graphic 17 is the IntelliSnap Operations dialog window for a subclient. IntelliSnap must be enabled by checking the IntelliSnap checkbox, and the "Nimble CS-Series Snap and Replicate" snap engine should be selected from the pull down menu.

Optionally, the backup copy proxy host can also be set at this time if desired.

The subclient properties storage device also needs to be configured. It is important to select a storage policy that has been configured with a snapshot copy.

General   IntelliSnap Operations	Contents   Storage Device	Pr Activity	e/Post Proc Control	ess Encryption
Data Storage Policy Data	Transfer Option			
Storage Policy:				
ExchangeStoragePolicy			Da	ta Paths
Incremental Storage Policy	:		N/A	
			Da	ta Paths
Create Storage Policy	<u></u>			

Figure 18 – Subclient Storage Device

Shown in figure 18 is the storage device data storage policy for a subclient. It is important to select a storage policy that has been configured with a snapshot copy.

### Recovery

### **Listing Snapshots**

Snapshots can be viewed from within Simpana in two ways. The first method is to right click a client iData Agent and then select "All Tasks > List Snaps" from the pop-up menu. This provides a list of all IntelliSnap snapshots for a specific agent on a specific client. The second method is to use the array management user interface, select a Nimble Storage array, and the click the "List Snaps" button. This provides a list of all IntelliSnap snapshots on the selected array.

Source Cliept	Source Path	Mount Host	Mount Path	Application Type
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	F:\	mount nost	Hound Fader	Windows File Sys
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	G:\			SQL Server
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	H:\			SQL Server
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	F:\			Windows File Sys
dpl-ex2010.sedemo.lab	S:\			Exchange Datab
dpl-ex2010.sedemo.lab	T:\			Exchange Datab
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	G:\			SQL Server
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	H:\			SQL Server
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	F:\			Windows File Sys
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	G:\			SQL Server

Figure 19 – IntelliSnap Snapshots on a Nimble Storage Array

From the Nimble Storage web user interface, snapshots can be viewed by selecting a particular volume or volume collection, and then clicking on the snapshot tab.

Volume Collections > dpl-sql-collection

				Status	napshots Replication
Set Online Set Offline Clone Delete			Number of S	Snapshot Collections:	12 Usage: 1.24 MB
	Time	Origin	Schedule	New Data	Compression
E 🚱 SP.2.58.1401741648CommVault	06/02 01:40 PM	TMSandbox	-	Unknown	N/A
E 🚱 SP.2.57.1401741578CommVault	06/02 01:39 PM	TMSandbox	-	Unknown	N/A
🗐 🚱 SP.2.56.1401741487CommVault	06/02 01:38 PM	TMSandbox	-	Unknown	N/A
🗐 🚱 SP.2.55.1401741266CommVault	06/02 01:34 PM	TMSandbox	-	Unknown	N/A

Figure 20 – Snapshots in a Nimble Storage Volume Collection

### Local Recovery with Simpana

Right clicking the desired iData Agent for a given client, select "All Tasks > Browse and Restore" from the pop-up menu. View backup content and then select the content to be recovered. The workflow is similar to any Simpana recovery operation. Depending on the iData Agent type, there may be an advanced option available to use the hardware revert capability.

🕗 Advanced Re	store Options 🔀
Advanced Genera	Startup   Pre/Post   Copy Precedence   Data Path   Encryption   Alert   Options
🔽 Use hardwa	are revert capability if available
🖉 Warr	ing X
?	Selecting revert will overwrite the entire disk. All existing data will be lost Do you really want to continue?
	Yes No

Figure 21 – Simpana Advanced Restore Option – Hardware Revert

Shown in figure 21 is the Simpana advanced restore option hardware revert. Selecting this option brings the entire Nimble Storage volume collection back to the point in time when the snapshot was created.

Hardware revert should be used only when it is necessary to recover an entire volume collection as all data on the volumes will revert back to the time the snapshot was taken. In some use cases, hardware revert may execute faster than a conventional recovery. Instead of copying backup data from a snapshot back into the active file system, hardware revert restores Nimble Storage volumes at the array level without data movement. Hardware revert would be significantly faster in cases where a single large database was being recovered, for example.

#### **Non-Application Aware Recovery**

The ability to perform recovery without application awareness is covered here for awareness but is not recommend in practice. Listing snapshots, and right clicking a single snapshot displays a pop-up menu with the option to use the hardware revert capability of the Nimble Storage array. Exercise caution if deciding to use this functionality as it can corrupt a running application.

Source Client	Source P	Mo	Mo	Application Type Name	Jot	*
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	F:\			Windows File System	271	
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	F:\			Windows File System	269	
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	F:\			Windows File System	266	
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	F:\		<u> </u>	Windows File System	263	
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	F:\	Mou	Int			
dpl-sql2008r2.sedemo.lab	F:\	Unn	nount			
		For	ce Unm	ount		
		Use	hardw	are revert capability if av	ailable	
		Dele	ete			
		Det	ail			

Figure 22 – Non-Application Aware Recovery

Shown in figure 22 is the ability to perform a non-application aware recovery using the hardware revert capability of the Nimble Storage array. Using this capability is not recommended as it may corrupt a running application.

### Using Replicated Snapshots for Recovery

IntelliSnap created snapshots are application consistent and reside on the local Nimble Storage array in native file system format. When these snapshots are replicated with Nimble volume collection schedules they will retain the same application consistency and native file system formatting. Unlike backups that may have been written in ANSI, TAR, MTF, or CPIO format, using replicated IntelliSnap created snapshots to recover data or conduct recovery testing is simple and easy.

A short series of steps are executed to enable recovery from replicated volume collection snapshots:

- A volume collection snapshot is cloned to create one or more volumes.
- The cloned volumes are edited to allow access from the desired initiator group and placed online.
- The volumes are discovered by and connected to the desired host.

Once online, the data contained within the snapshot is available for use. Data on the cloned volumes can be used in R/W mode or copied to another location.

Cloned volumes provide an excellent vehicle for disaster recovery testing without impacting production workload. Cloned volumes consume no additional array disk space at creation time. During testing, the content of volume collection snapshots are not altered, the original backup content remains pristine. At the completion of testing, cloned volumes can disconnected from the host, taken offline, and deleted.

The following example details the use of replicated snapshots for MS SQL data recovery. Recovery techniques for other data types will vary, but the underlying principles are the same.

#### **Recovery Example: MS SQL Database Recovery**

- -- --

Replicated volume collection snapshots represent points in time to which a given database can be recovered. Decide which snapshot best meets the recovery objective and then clone the volume collection snapshot. This will create cloned volumes for both the database and log volumes. Edit the cloned volumes to allow access by the initiator group associated with the MS SQL Server host and then set them online. Discover and connect the cloned volumes on the MS SQL Server host. Set the disks online using the Windows Server Manager Disk Management user interface. Copy the correct MDF and LDF files to the desired file system path. (Note: An alternative approach where the cloned volumes are used in R/W mode is also possible but may require the use of the "DiskPart" utility to clear the "Readonly" volume attribute. This eliminates the need to copy MDF and LDF files to an alternate location.) Attach the database using the MS SQL Server Management Studio.

Volume Collections > dpl-sql-collection			Status	Snapshots	Replication
Set Online Set Offline Clone Delete		Number of S	Snapshot Collection	is: 7 Usage: 1	254.77 КВ
		Volume name parameters			
Snapshot	Time	Old volume name	New volume na	me	
🔽 🚭 SP.2.58.1401741648CommVault	06/02 01:42 PM				
🗐 🚭 SP.2.57.1401741578CommVault	06/02 01:40 PM	dpl-tmsandbox-sql2008r2-dbvol	dpl-sql-dbvol-clone		
🗐 🚭 SP.2.56.1401741487CommVault	06/02 01:39 PM				
🗐 🚭 SP.2.55.1401741266CommVault	06/02 01:35 PM	api-tmsandbox-sqi2008r2-logvol	dpl-sql-logvol-clone		
🗐 🌍 SP.2.54.1401741140CommVault	06/02 01:33 PM				
🗐 🚱 SP.2.53.1401741025CommVault	06/02 01:30 PM		ок	Cancel	

Figure 23 – Cloning a Volume Collection

Shown in figure 23 is a replicated Simpana IntelliSnap volume collection snapshot selected for cloning.

Volumes > dpl-sql-db	vol-clone	Edit Volume
		General Properties Volume Size Protection Access
Take Snapshot	Edit	eate Access Control Entry
VOLUME SPACE		
Size	20.0 GB	Apply to Volume & Snapshots
Used	0 B	
Reserve	2.0 GB	C Allow unrestricted access
Quota	20.0 GB	
Primary Compression	N/A	✓ Limit access to iSCSI initiator group dpl-sd/2008r2 ✓
Primary Space Saved	0 B	Authenticate using CHAP username None V
		OK Cancel

Figure 24 – Editing Volume Access

Shown in figure 24 is the initiator group of a MS SQL Server being added as an access control entry. This action should be performed for both the database and log volumes.

					Status	Snapshot	Replication
Take Snapshot	Edit	Delete	Clain	Set Online			
VOLUME SPACE			THROUGHPU	r	GENERAL		
Size	5.0 GB			Read Write	Performance Policy	SQL Server Lo	95
Used	0 B		100		Volume Collection	Not Protect	ed
Reserve	512.0 MB		80-		Connected Initiators	0	

Figure 25 – Set Volume Online

Shown in figure 25 is the "Set Online" button. The cloned database and log volumes should both be set online.

ystem Settings Nimble Volumes						
Discovered Nimble Volumes						
Volume Name	Mapping Info	Size	Properties	Array Count	Connections	Array \
Solution and the second	Disk3	20GB	*	1	2	
G dpl-sql-logvol-clone	Disk4	5GB	*	1	2	
e dpl-tmsandbox-sql2008r2-dbvol	Disk1, D:\	20GB	*	1	2	
R dpl-tmsandbox-sql2008r2-logvol	Disk2, L:\	5GB	*	1	2	
4					1	

Figure 26 – Nimble Connection Manager

Shown in figure 26 are the cloned database and log volumes after being discovered and connected.

Calbisk 3 Basic 20.00 GB Online	dpl-tmsanbaox-sql2008r2-dbvol (E:) 20.00 GB NTF5 Healthy (Primary Partition)
CDisk 4 Basic 5.00 GB Offline (1) Help	Online Properties Help

Figure 27 – Windows Server Manager – Disk Management

Shown in figure 27 are disks 3 and 4 representing the MS SQL database and log volumes. Both disks need to be set online.



Figure 28 – Copy MDF & LDF Files

Depicted in figure 28 is a copy operation where a MS SQL database file has been copied from a cloned volume to the desired file system path. This operation needs to be performed for both the MDF and LDF files for each database being recovered. An alternative approach where the cloned volumes are used in *R/W* mode is also possible but may require the use of the "DiskPart" utility to clear the "Read-only" volume attribute. This eliminates the need to copy MDF and LDF files to an alternate location.

🥛 Attach Databases		
Select a page	🔍 Script 👻 🛐 Help	
🚰 General		
	Databases to attach:	
	MDF File Location Database Attach As Ow	ner Status Message
	D:\TM1.mdf TM1 TM1 sa	
	<u>A</u> dd	<u>R</u> emove
	"TM1" database details:	
	Original File Name File Type Current File Path	Message
Connection	TM1.mdf Data D:\TM1.mdf	
Lonnection	TM1_log.ldf Log L:\TM1_log.ldf	
Server:		
Sa Connection:		
Progress		
T Togress	Add <u>C</u> atalo	ig Re <u>m</u> ove
Ready		
445		
		OK Cancel

Figure 29 – Attach Database

Shown in figure 29 are the MDF and LDF files copied from the cloned volumes being attached as a database. Note that the "Attach As" field can be altered to attach the recovered database using a different name.

# Appendix A: Nimble Storage as a Simpana Disk Library

While the primary focus of this document is Nimble Storage array integration with Simpana IntelliSnap, there may be cases where utilizing a Nimble Storage volume as a Simpana disk library is desirable. This section provides guidelines for configuring the Nimble Storage volume, performance policy, Simpana Media Agent host, and Simpana disk library.

### Nimble Storage Performance Policy

Performance policies align the performance requirements of a given application with the performance characteristics of a target Nimble Storage volume. Options to set the storage block size, compression, caching, and "quota exceeded behavior" parameters on a Nimble Storage volume should be configured for use as a Simpana disk library.

In the example provided below, storage block size has been configured to 32 KB, the same value will be configured for the Simpana storage policy copy block size. Compression has been enabled in this example because Simpana subclient software compression has been disabled. Caching is not enabled because backup streams written to the disk library will only be read from disk in the event of a restore request. The space management parameter, "Quota Exceeded Behavior", has been set to "Non-Writeable" instead of offline so that restore requests can be fulfilled even if the volume quota is exceeded.

Name	dpi-Simpana-DiskLibrary
PERFORMAN	CE PARAMETERS
Storage	Block Size 32RB (32768) V In Dytes
Com	pression
Cach	ing
SPACE MANA	CEMENT DADAMETEDS
JFACL MANA	

Figure 30 – Nimble Storage Performance Policy

Shown in figure 30 is an example Nimble Storage performance policy. The storage block size, compression, caching, and space management parameters have been set to best align with the intended usage of the volume.

### Nimble Storage Initiator Group

The Nimble Storage volume created for use as a Simpana disk library should only be accessed by the specific initiator within the designated Simpana media agent. An initiator group containing only the initiator of the media agent should be configured.

Edit Delete	Add Initiator			
INITIATORS				ASSOCIATED VOLUMES
Initiator Name	IQN	IP Address		Volume/Clones
dpl-simpanacs.sedemo.lab	iqn.1991-05.com.microsoft:dpl-s	•	8	dpl-TMSandbox-Ex2010-database
				dpl-TMSandbox-Ex2010-log
				dpl-TMSandbox-SimpanaCS-DiskLibrary
				dpl-TMSandbox-SimpanaCS-DiskLibrar

Figure 31 – Nimble Storage Initiator Group

Shown in figure 31 is an initiator group containing only the initiator of the Simpana media agent that will use a target Nimble Storage volume as a Simpana disk library. Note that the initiator group has additional volumes associated with it in order for the media agent to act as a proxy during backup copy operations.

### Nimble Storage Volume

The volume created for use as a Simpana disk library should be configured to use the performance policy that was created specifically for use with disk libraries. Volume reserve space should be configured to account for compression (if compression is enabled in the performance policy). Compression typically reaches a 50% ratio, and volume reserve should be configured with a maximum value of 50% of total volume size to avoid reserving array space that may never actually be used.

Volume protection should be set to a value of "None". This produces "Not Protected" status. This status is appropriate as the volume is being used as a disk library.

### Simpana Media Agent

Connecting the Nimble Storage volume to a media agent requires a supported host initiator and operating system for the version of Nimble OS being used. Consult the "Nimble Storage Support Matrix" for the version of Nimble OS being used to assure a supported configuration is being deployed. Nimble Storage compatibility matrices are available on the Nimble Storage InfoSight web portal.

In the example provided, the Simpana media agent is running Microsoft Windows 2008R2 updated with appropriate Microsoft patches and hotfixes. The Nimble Windows Toolkit, available for download from the Nimble Storage InfoSight web portal, includes Nimble Connection Manager software. The Nimble Connection Manager should be configured to discover the Nimble Storage array based on the initiator name of the array.

elect Host MPIO IP Addre	esses	Excluded IP Address
1		
		Exclude >
		< Tucing
imble Discovery IP (Port	3260)	
imble Discovery IP (Port Group Name	3260) Discovery IP A	ddress
imble Discovery IP (Port Group Name TMSandbox Unknown	3260) JDiscovery IP A	ddress
imble Discovery IP (Port Group Name TMSandbox Unknown	3260) Discovery IP A	ddress

Figure 32 – Nimble Connection Manager - System Settings

Shown in figure 32 is the Nimble Connection Manager configured to discover volumes on the Nimble Storage array containing a volume to be used as a Simpana disk library.

The "Nimble Volumes" tab of the Nimble Connection Manager with the volume that will be used as a Simpana disk library:

Constantine Constantine Constantine Constantine Constantine Constantine Constantine Constantine Constantine Const	Numble vo	umes						
Discovered Nimble	Volumes							
Volume Name		Mapping Info	Size	Properties	Array Count	Connections	Array Version	

Figure 33 – Nimble Connection Manager - Nimble Volumes

Note that the connected volume should be configured to connect on startup.

Figure 34 – Connect on Startup Property

At this point the Windows Server Manager can be used to initialize, format, and assign a drive letter to the volume.

### Simpana Disk Library

The Simpana Library and Drive Configuration user interface should be used to configure the new volume as a library. The data path for storage policy copies using the new disk library should be configured to use a block size of 32 KB.

Data Path Pro	perties
ieneral	
MediaAgent:	dpl-simpanacs.sedemo.lab
Library:	NimbleDiskLibrary
Drive Pool:	N/A
Scratch Pool:	N/A
Enabled:	Yes
SILO	No
Index Cache:	INDEXCACHE_1
<ul> <li>Use App</li> <li>Use spe</li> </ul>	lication setting
Block Size (K	3)
C Use Med	lia Type setting
Use spe	cified value: 32 💌

Figure 35 – Data Path Properties

Shown in figure 35 is the data path properties dialog for a storage policy copy that uses the disk library. The block size should be configured to correspond to the block size set within the Nimble Storage performance policy used for the volume.



#### Nimble Storage, Inc.

211 River Oaks Parkway, San Jose, CA 95134 Tel: 877-364-6253; 408-432-9600 | www.nimblestorage.com | info@nimblestorage.com

© 2014 Nimble Storage, Inc. Nimble Storage, the Nimble Storage logo, InfoSight, CASL, SmartStack, and NimbleConnect are trademarks or registered trademarks of Nimble Storage, Inc. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. BPG-SIM-0914